EXHIBIT "E"

BY-LAWS

BYLAWS OF 332 COCOANUT CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC.

- 1. <u>Identity</u>. These are the Bylaws of 332 Cocoanut Condominium Association, Inc., a corporation not for profit under the laws of the State of Florida (herein called the "Association"), the Articles of Incorporation of which were filed in the office of the Secretary of State of the State of Florida on the 19th day of January , 2021. The Association has been organized pursuant to the Florida Statutes for the purpose of administering maintaining, repairing, replacing, operating and managing 332 Cocoanut, a Condominium (herein "332 Cocoanut") being a condominium project located in Sarasota County, Florida, as described in Article 2.1 of the Articles of Incorporation.
- 1.1. The initial principal office of the Association shall be at 1634 Main Street, Sarasota, Florida 34236.
 - 1.2. The fiscal year of the Association shall be the calendar year.
- 1.3. The seal of the corporation shall bear the name of the corporation, the word "Florida", the words "Corporation not for profit" and the year of incorporation.
- 1.4. <u>Use of Certain Terms.</u> 332 Cocoanut, a condominium is sometimes referred to herein as the "Condominium." A condominium unit in the Condominium is sometimes hereinafter referred to as a "Unit," and the owner of a Unit is sometimes hereinafter referred to as an "Owner" or a "Unit Owner." The condominium property of the Condominium is sometimes referred to as "Condominium Property."
- 1.5. Capitalized terms used herein shall have the same meaning as set forth in the Articles of Incorporation and in the Declaration of Condominium for 332 Cocoanut.

2. Members' Meetings.

- 2.1. <u>Annual Meeting</u>. The Annual Members' Meeting shall be held on a date and at a time determined by the Board of Directors of the Association at the office of the Association each year for the purpose of electing Directors and transacting any other business authorized to be by the members; provided, however, if that day is a legal holiday, the meeting shall be held at the same hour on the next day that is not a holiday. The members shall meet at least once in each calendar year.
- 2.2. Special Meeting. Special Members' Meetings shall be held whenever called by the President or Vice President or by a majority of the Board of Directors, and must be called by such officers upon receipt of a written request from members entitled to cast twenty percent (20%) of the votes (Voting Interests) of the entire membership of the Condominium. A special meeting of the members may be called by written petition (application) by at least ten percent (10%) of the votes (Voting Interests) giving notice of the meeting as required for a meeting of the members, which notice must state the purpose of the meeting is to recall a member(s) of the Board pursuant to Section 718.112(2)(j), Florida Statutes, and Rule 61B-23.0027, Florida Administrative Code (F.A.C.) or to consider and enact a budget pursuant to Section 718.112(2)(e), Florida Statutes, when the adopted budget by the Board exceeds 115% of Assessments for the preceding year.
- 2.3. <u>Notice</u>. Notice of all members' meetings stating the time and place and including the agenda for which the meeting is called shall be given by the President or Vice President or Secretary unless waived in writing. Such notice shall be in writing and sent to each member at his address as it appears on the books of the Association. The notice of all members' meetings, other than for the annual

meeting, shall be delivered or mailed not less than fourteen (14) days nor more than sixty (60) days prior to the date of the meeting. A first Notice of the annual meeting shall be given not less than sixty (60) days prior to the annual meeting and a second Notice shall be given at least fourteen (14) days prior to the annual meeting. An officer of the Association shall execute an affidavit affirming that notices of the members' meeting were mailed or hand delivered to each Unit Owner in accordance with the Florida Condominium Act. This affidavit shall be included in the official records of the Association. In addition, a notice of the annual and each meeting of the membership shall be posted at a conspicuous place on the Condominium or Association Property, if any, at least fourteen (14) continuous days preceding the annual and each meeting of the members. Proof of posting shall be given by Affidavit. The notice of the annual meeting of the members must be sent either by hand delivery or by mail to each Unit Owner unless the particular Unit Owner has waived in writing the right to receive the notice of the annual meeting by mail or hand delivery. Upon notice to the members, the Board shall by duly adopted rule, designate a specific location on the Condominium, Association Property, if any, or other property upon which all notice of Unit Owner meetings shall be posted. Where a Unit is owned by more than one person, the Association shall provide notice, for meetings and all other purposes, to that one address which the Developer initially identified for that purpose and thereafter as one or more of the Owners of the Unit shall so advise the Association in writing, or if no address is given or the Owners of the Unit do not agree, to the address provided on the deed of record for the Unit.

- 2.4. The record date on which members who were entitled to notice of a meeting are determined is three (3) days prior to the date the first notice are mailed or hand delivered.
- 2.5. Unless a lower number or no requirement of quorum is provided within these Bylaws, a quorum at members' meetings shall consist of a majority of the Voting Interests in the Condominium present in person or by proxy, if allowed by the Florida Condominium Act. All decisions at a members' meeting shall be made by a majority of the Voting Interests represented at a meeting at which a quorum is present, except when approval by a lesser or greater percentage of Voting Interests is required by the applicable Declaration of Condominium, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws.

2.6. Voting.

- a. In any meeting of members, voting percentages shall be as described in Article 4.4 of the Articles of Incorporation, and Article 11.4 of the Declaration.
- b. If a Unit is owned by one person, his or her right to vote shall be established by the record title to his or her Unit. If a Unit is owned by more than one person, the person entitled to cast the vote for the Unit (who shall be one of the record Owners) shall be designated by a certificate signed by all of the record Owners of the Unit and filed with the Secretary of the Association at or prior to the meeting. If a Unit is owned by a corporation, the person entitled to cast the vote for the Unit (who shall be one of the current officers or Directors of the corporation) shall be designated by a certificate signed by the President or Vice President and attested by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary of the corporation and filed with the Secretary of the Association at or prior to the meeting. Such certificates shall be valid until revoked or until superseded by a subsequent certificate or until a change in the ownership of the Unit concerned. A certificate designating the person entitled to cast the vote of a Unit may be revoked by any Owner of a Unit. If such a certificate is not on file, the vote of such Owners shall not be considered in determining whether a quorum is present or for any other purpose.
- c. The Association shall retain proof of all Voting Interests in attendance, either in person or by proxy, all ballots, sign-in sheets, voting proxies, and all other papers relating to voting by Unit Owners for a period of one (1) year from the date of the election, vote, or meeting to which the document relates at the Association office. Such proof shall include the date of the meeting and

{01417107-2}

the signatures reflecting all Voting Interests present in person or by proxy. An association may suspend, for a reasonable period of time, the right of a unit owner, or a unit owner's tenant, guest, or invitee, to use the common elements, common facilities, or any other association property for failure to comply with any provision of the declaration, the association bylaws, or reasonable rules of the association. This paragraph does not apply to limited common elements intended to be used only by that unit, common elements needed to access the unit, utility services provided to the unit, parking spaces, or elevators.

- Proxies. Except as specifically otherwise provided herein, Unit Owners may not vote by general proxy, but may vote by limited proxies substantially conforming to the limited proxy form adopted by the Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, Limited proxies and general proxies may be used to establish a quorum. Limited proxies shall be used for votes taken to waive or reduce reserves in accordance with Section 718.112(2)(f)2., Florida Statutes; for votes taken to waive financial statement requirements as provided by Section 718.111(13), Florida Statutes; for votes taken to amend the Declaration pursuant to Section 718.110, Florida Statutes; for votes taken to amend the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws pursuant to the provisions herein; and for any other matter for which Chapter 718, Florida Statutes, requires or permits a vote of the Unit Owners. No proxy, limited or general, shall be used in the election of members to the Board. General proxies may be used for other matters for which limited proxies are not required, and may also be used in voting for nonsubstantive changes to items for which a limited proxy is required and given. Notwithstanding the provisions hereof, Unit Owners may vote in person at Unit Owner meetings. Each proxy shall specifically set forth the name of the person voting by proxy and the name of the person or persons authorized to vote the proxy for him. Each proxy shall contain the date, time and place of the meeting for which the proxy is given and, if a limited proxy, set forth those items on which the holder of the proxy may vote and the manner in which the vote is to be cast. Each proxy may provide for the substitution of the person authorized. Every proxy shall be revocable at any time at the pleasure of the Unit Owner executing it. A proxy shall be valid only for the specific meeting for which it was originally given and any lawful adjournments thereof, provided such adjourned meetings occur within ninety (90) days of the original meeting.
- 2.8. <u>Adjourned meetings</u>. If any meeting of members cannot be organized because a quorum has not attended, the members who are present, either in person or by valid proxy may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present.
- 2.9. <u>The Order of business</u>. The order of business at annual members' meetings, and as far as practical at other members' meetings, shall be:
 - a. Collection of election ballots
 - b. Election of chairman of the meeting
 - c. Roll call; proxies and/or election ballots certification
 - d. Proof of notice of meeting or waiver of notice
 - e. Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes
 - f. Reports of officers
 - g. Reports of committees
 - h. Election of inspectors of election

- i. Election of Directors
- i. Unfinished business
- k. New business
- 1. Adjournment
- 2.10. <u>Waiver of Notice</u>. The members may waive notice of any specific members' meeting in writing or orally before or after any meeting. The members may also act by written agreement without meeting on only those matters for which action by written agreement without meetings is expressly allowed by these Bylaws, Declaration or any Florida Statute that provides for such action.
- 2.11. <u>Proviso.</u> PROVIDED, however, that while the Developer of the Condominium holds Units for sale in the ordinary course of business no action defined within Section 718.301(3)(a)(b) shall be taken without approval in writing from the Developer.
- 2.12. Minutes. Minutes of each annual and any special members' meeting shall be kept in a businesslike manner by the Secretary of the Association and shall be available for inspection by Unit Owners and members of the Board of Directors at all reasonable times upon reasonable advance notice to the Secretary and pursuant to Paragraph 9 herein.
- 2.13. <u>Unit Owner Meeting Participation</u>. Unit Owners shall have the right to participate in meetings of Unit Owners with reference to all designated agenda items. Unit Owners do not have the right to speak with respect to items not specifically designated on the agenda; however, the Board may permit a Unit Owner to speak on such items. However, the Association may adopt reasonable rules in writing governing the frequency, duration, and manner of Unit Owner participation.
- 2.14. <u>Tape Recording or Video Taping of Meetings</u>. Any Unit Owner may tape record or video tape a meeting of the Unit Owners subject to such reasonable rules adopted by the Florida Division of Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes, and such written rules as may be adopted in compliance therewith by the Board.

3. Directors.

- 3.1. <u>Board of Directors</u>. The affairs of the Association shall be managed by a Board of Directors or Board of Administration.
 - 3.2. <u>Membership</u>. The Board of Directors shall consist of at least three (3) Directors.
- 3.3. Qualifications. All Directors (except for those Directors elected or appointed by the Developer pursuant to Article 5.1 of the Articles of Incorporation) shall be Unit Owners, co-owners or officers of corporate owners and be at least eighteen (18) years of age.
- 3.4. <u>Election of Directors</u>. Election of Directors shall be conducted in the following manner:
 - a. Election of Directors shall be held at the annual members' meeting.

- b. Any Unit Owner desiring to be a candidate for Board membership shall comply with subparagraph (c.) immediately herein below.
- c. The members of the Board shall be elected by written ballot or voting machine. Proxies shall in no event be used in electing the Board, either in general elections or elections to fill vacancies caused by recall, resignation, or otherwise unless otherwise provided by Chapter 718. Florida Statute. Not less than sixty (60) days before a scheduled election, the Association shall mail or deliver, whether by separate Association mailing or included in another Association mailing or delivery including regularly published newsletters, to each Unit Owner entitled to vote, a First Notice of the date of the election.

Any Unit Owner or other eligible person desiring to be a candidate for the Board must give written notice to the Association not less than forty (40) days before a scheduled election. Before the election, the Association shall mail or deliver a Second Notice of the election to all Unit Owner(s) entitled to vote therein, together with a ballot which shall list all candidates and the written notice and agenda required in Section 718.112(2)(d)3, Florida Statutes. Upon request of a candidate, the Association shall include an information sheet, no larger than 8 ½ x 11 inches, which must be furnished by the candidate not less than thirty-five (35) days before the election, to be included with the mailing of the ballot, with the costs of mailing and copying to be borne by the Association. However, the Association has no liability for the contents of the information sheets prepared by the candidates. The voting procedures at such meeting shall be such as are consistent with provisions established within such rules adopted by the Florida Division of Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes. Elections shall be decided by a plurality of all those ballots cast. There shall be no quorum requirement; however, at least twenty percent (20%) of the eligible voters in the Condominium must cast a ballot in order to have a valid election of members of the Board. No Unit Owner shall permit any other person to vote his ballot, and any such ballots improperly cast shall be deemed invalid. A Unit Owner who needs assistance in casting the ballot for the reason stated in Section 101.051, Florida Statutes, may obtain assistance in casting the ballot. Any Unit Owner violating this provision may be fined by the Association in accordance with Section 718.303, Florida Statutes The regular election shall occur on the date of the annual meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoing, an election and balloting are not required unless more candidates file notices of intent to run than vacancies exist on the Board.

- d. Except as to vacancies provided by removal of Directors by members, vacancies on the Board of Directors occurring between annual meetings of members shall be filled by the Developer or Unit Owners, other than Developer, who, as the case may be, had previously elected or appointed that Board member.
- e. Subject to the provisions of the Florida Condominium Act, any Director may be removed with or without cause by the vote or agreement in writing by a majority of all Voting Interests entitled to elect such Director. A vote either by Developer or Unit Owners to fill a Board vacancy caused by recall of such Board member having been elected or appointed by Developer or Unit Owners may not be by proxy. If a vacancy occurs on the Board as a result of a recall and less than a majority of the Board members are removed, the vacancy may be filled by the affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining Directors, notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in Subparagraph (d)(3) of Subsection (2) of Section 718.112, Florida Statutes If vacancies occur on the Board as a result of a recall and a majority or more of the Board members are removed, the vacancy shall be filled in accordance with such procedural rules as may have been adopted by the Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares and Mobile Homes.
- f. Until the Developer of the Condominium has terminated its control of the Association and the Condominium in accordance with the provisions of Article 5.1 of the Articles of

Incorporation, the First Board of Directors of the Association shall serve. In the event of vacancies in the First Board of Directors, the Developer (or if it fails to do so, the remaining Directors) shall fill the vacancies, and if there are no remaining Directors, the vacancies shall be filled, by the Developer, except as may be otherwise specifically provided by the Florida Condominium Act. The transfer of control of the Association from the Developer to the members shall be as provided in the Articles of Incorporation.

- 3.5. The term of each Director's service shall extend until the next annual meeting of the members and subsequently until his successor is duly elected and qualified or until he is removed in the manner elsewhere provided.
- 3.6 The organization meeting of a newly-elected Board of Directors shall be held within ten (10) days of their election at such place and time as shall be fixed by the Directors at the meeting at which they were elected.
- 3.7. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors may be held at such time and place as shall be determined, from time to time, by a majority of the Directors. Notice of regular meetings (except for any such meeting at which the adoption of the annual budget is to be considered) shall be given to each Director, personally or by mail, fax, telephone or telegraph, at least three (3) days prior to the day of such meeting.
- 3.8. Special meetings of the Directors may be called by the President and must be called by the Secretary at the written request of one-third (1/3) of the Directors. Notice of special meetings (except for any such meeting at which the adoption of the annual budget is to be considered and except for an emergency) shall be given personally or by mail, fax, telephone or telegraph, at least three (3) days prior to the day named for such meeting, which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting.
- 3.9. Meetings of the Board of Directors at which a quorum of the members is present shall be open to all Unit Owners. Any Unit Owner may tape record or videotape meetings of the Board of Directors. The right to attend such meetings includes the right to speak at such meetings with reference to all designated agenda items. Such tape recording or videotaping of the meetings shall be governed by the applicable rules of the Division. The Association may adopt reasonable rules governing the frequency, duration and manner of Unit Owner statements.
- 3.10. Notices of all meetings of the Board of Directors specifically identifying all agenda items shall be titled "To The Attention of All Unit Owners" and shall also be posted conspicuously on the Condominium Property at least forty-eight (48) continuous hours preceding the meeting, except in an emergency. Any item not included on a Notice may be taken upon an emergency basis by at least a majority plus one of the members of the Board. Such emergency action shall be noticed and ratified at the next regular meeting of the Board. Notice of any meeting in which regular Assessments against Units or Unit Owners are to be considered for any reason shall contain a statement that Assessments will be considered and the nature of any such assessments. Written notice of any meeting at which non-emergency Special Assessment, or at which amendment to rules regarding Unit use will be considered, shall be mailed or delivered to the Unit Owners and posted conspicuously on the Condominium Property not less than fourteen (14) days prior to the meeting. Evidence of compliance with this fourteen (14) day notice shall be made by an affidavit executed by the person providing the notice and filed among the Official Records of the Association. Upon notice to the Unit Owners, the Board shall by duly adopted rule designate a specific location on the Condominium Property or Association Property, if any, upon which all notices of Board meetings shall be posted.

- 3.11. Meeting to Adopt Annual Budget. The members must be given written notice of the time and place of the meeting at which the Board of Directors will consider the annual budget. A copy of the notice of the meeting and the proposed annual budget of Common Expenses and proposed assessments must be mailed or hand delivered to the Unit Owner members not less than fourteen (14) days prior to such meeting. The meeting shall be open to the Unit Owners. An officer or manager of the Association, or other person providing notice of such meeting, shall execute an affidavit evidencing compliance with this notice requirement, and such affidavit shall be filed among the Official Records of the Association.
- 3.12. Waiver of Notice. Any Director may waive the notice of a meeting to which he is entitled before or after the meeting and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of notice to such Director.
- 3.13. Quorum. A quorum at directors' meetings shall consist of a majority of the entire Board of Directors. The acts approved by a majority of those present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the acts of the Board of Directors, except when approval by a greater number of directors is required by the Condominium Act, the Declaration of Condominium, the Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws. A Director who is present at a meeting of the Board at which action on any corporate matter is taken shall be presumed to have assented to the action taken unless such Director votes against such action or abstains from voting in respect thereto because of an asserted conflict of interest. No Director may vote by proxy or by secret ballot at a Board meeting except that Officers may be elected by secret ballot. A vote or abstention for each member present shall be recorded in the minutes of that meeting.
- 3.14. Adjourned meetings. If at any meeting of the Board of Directors there be less than a quorum present, the majority of those present may adjourn the meeting from time to time until a quorum is present. At any adjourned meeting any business that might have been transacted at the meeting as originally called may be transacted provided adequate statutory notice has been posted in advance.
- 3.15. Written Agreement or Disagreement to Action Taken. Although a Director may submit his or her agreement or disagreement with any action taken at a meeting which he or she did not attend, such agreement or disagreement may not be used as a vote for or against the action taken and may not be used for the purposes of creating a quorum.
- 3.16. The presiding officer of Directors' meetings shall be the Chairman of the Board if such an officer has been elected; and if none, the President shall preside. In the absence of the presiding officer the Directors present shall designate one of their members to preside.
 - 3.17. The order of business at Directors' meetings shall be:
 - a. Calling of Roll
 - b. Proof of due notice of meeting
 - c. Reading and disposal of any unapproved minutes
 - d. Reports of officers and committees
 - e. Election of officers
 - f. Unfinished business

- g. New business
- h. Adjournment
- 3.18. Directors' compensation, if any, shall be determined by the members. No Director shall solicit, offer to accept, or accept anything or service of value for which consideration has not been provided for his own benefit or that of his immediate family, from any person providing or proposing to provide goods or services to the Association. Any Director who knowingly so solicits, offers to accept, or accepts anything or service of a value is subject to a civil penalty pursuant to Section 718.501(1)(d)4., Florida Statutes However, this paragraph does not prohibit a Director from accepting services or items received in connection with trade fairs or education programs.
- 3.19. The Board of Directors by resolution adopted by a majority of the full Board may designate from among its members an executive committee, and one or more other committees, comprised either of Board members, Unit Owners, or Board members and Unit Owners appointed by the Board, or a member of the Board, to make recommendations to the Board regarding the Association budget or to take action on behalf of the Board, whose exercise of power shall be subject to the prior and subsequent approval of the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors may delegate to the executive committee such powers as it deems proper, except as prohibited by Florida Statutes, and the Board may designate one or more members as alternate members of any such committee who may act in the place and stead of any absent member or members at any meeting of such committee.
- 3.20. <u>Rules and Regulations</u>. The Board of Directors may adopt, amend and rescind uniform Rules and Regulations to govern the operation and use of the Condominium, Association Property, if any, the Common Elements and all other real and personal property, improvements, streets and the recreational and other common facilities owned and/or operated by the Association for the use, benefit and enjoyment of its members or otherwise serving its members including, without limitations Rules and Regulations regulating, restricting, limiting or governing:
 - a. The loaning, lending and/or temporary occupancy of Units;
- b. The use of the common areas and facilities of the Condominium and/or the Association Property, if any;
- c. The maintenance and keeping of pets within Units and/or about the Units or the common areas and facilities of the Condominium and/or the Association Property, if any;
 - d. Moves in and/or out of Units;
- e. The use, appearance and/or change in the appearance of the exterior of the Units including the balconies and other portions of the Unit visible from the exterior of the Unit; Specifications for hurricane shutters shall include color, style, and other factors deemed relevant by the Board, which specifications shall comply with applicable Building Code. Notwithstanding any provision herein or within other of the Condominium documents to the contrary, where approval is required by the Condominium documents, the Board shall not refuse to approve the installation or replacement of hurricane shutters which conform to the Board's adopted specifications. The installation, replacement, and maintenance of such shutters in accordance herewith shall not be deemed a material alteration to the Common Elements within the provisions of Section 718.113(2), Florida Statutes

- f. The parking/storage of vehicles; speed limits and traffic;
- g. The use of security, maintenance and janitorial personnel;
- h. The use and conduct of workmen/decorators:
- i. The resolution of disputes or disagreements between Unit Owners or between Unit Owners and the Association;
- j. The imposition of fines for violation of the terms and provisions of the Declaration, the Articles of Incorporation, the Bylaws and/or the Rules and Regulations.

Provided, however at no time may any Rule or Regulation be adopted which would prejudice the rights reserved to the Developer.

The Rules and Regulations shall not conflict with the Declaration, Articles of Incorporation or these Bylaws. The Rules and Regulations referred to herein shall be in addition to those contained in the Declaration.

3.21. When a Unit Owner files a written inquiry by certified mail with the Board, it shall respond to the Unit Owner within thirty (30) days of receipt of the inquiry. The Board shall give a substantive response to the inquirer, notify the inquirer that a legal opinion has been requested, or notify the inquirer that advice has been requested from the Division of Florida Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes. The failure to act within thirty (30) days and to notify the Unit Owner within thirty (30) days after the action taken precludes the Board from recovering attorney's fees and costs in any subsequent litigation, administrative proceeding, or arbitration arising out of the inquiry.

4. Powers and Duties of the Board of Directors.

- 4.1. All of the powers and duties of the Association existing under the Condominium Act, the Declaration of Condominium, Articles of Incorporation and these Bylaws shall be exercised exclusively by the Board of Directors, its agents, contractors or employees, subject only to approval by Unit Owners when such is specifically required. The Association shall have all of the powers and duties set forth in the Condominium Act, except as limited by the Articles of Incorporation, the Declaration of Condominium pursuant to the Declaration and as it may be amended from time to time, including but not limited to the powers as set forth in the Articles of Incorporation.
- 4.2. Any contract that is not to be fully performed within one (1) year after its making or any contract for the purchase, lease, or renting of materials or equipment to be used by the Association in accomplishing its purposes under Chapter 718 and any contract for the provision of services shall be in writing. If a contract for the purchase, lease, or renting of materials or equipment or for the provision of services requiring payment by the Association on behalf of the Condominium in the aggregate that exceeds five percent (5%) of the total annual budget of the Association, including reserves, the Association shall obtain competitive bids for the materials, equipment, or services. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to require the Association to accept the lowest bid. Notwithstanding the foregoing, contracts with employees of the Association which does not include managers hired by the Association licensed or required to be licensed pursuant to Section 468.431, Florida Statutes, and contracts for attorney, accountant, architect, engineer, and landscape architect services shall not be subject to the provisions hereof. A contract executed before January 1, 1992, and any renewal thereof, is not subject to the competitive bid requirements hereof. If a contract was awarded under the competitive bid

procedure hereof, any renewal of that contract is not subject to such competitive bid requirements if the contract contains a provision that allows the Board to cancel the contract on thirty (30) days notice. Materials, equipment, or services provided to a Condominium under a local government franchise agreement by a franchise holder are not subject to the competitive bid requirements hereof. A contract with a manager, if made by a competitive bid, may be made for up to three (3) years. Nothing contained herein is intended to limit the ability of the Association to obtain needed products and services in an emergency. The provisions hereof shall not apply if the business entity with which the Association desires to enter into a contract is the only source of supply within the County serving the Association. However, nothing contained herein shall excuse a party contracting to provide maintenance or management services from compliance with Section 718.3025, Florida Statutes

5. Officers.

- 5.1. The executive officers of the Association shall be a President, who shall be a Director, a Vice President, who shall be a Director, a Treasurer, a Secretary and an Assistant Secretary, all of whom shall be elected annually by the Board of Directors and shall serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. Any person may hold two or more offices, except that the President shall not be also the Secretary or an Assistant Secretary. The Board of Directors from time to time shall elect such other officers and designate their powers and duties as the Board shall find to be required to manage the affairs of the Association.
- 5.2. The President shall be the chief executive officer of the Association. He shall have all of the powers and duties usually vested in the office of President of an Association, including but not limited to the power to appoint committees from among the members from time to time, as he in his discretion may determine appropriate, to assist in the conduct of the affairs of the Association.
- 5.3. The Vice President in the absence or disability of the President shall exercise the powers and perform the duties of the President. He also shall assist the President generally and exercise such other powers and perform such other duties as shall be prescribed by the Directors.
- 5.4. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all proceedings of the Directors and the members. He shall attend to the giving and serving of all notices to the members and Directors and other notices required by law. He shall have custody of the seal of the Association and affix it to instruments requiring a seal when duly signed. He shall keep the Official Records of the Association, except those of the Treasurer, and shall perform all other duties incident to the office of Secretary of an association and as may be required by the Directors or the President. The Assistant Secretary shall perform the duties of the Secretary when the Secretary is absent.
- 5.5. The Treasurer shall have custody of all property of the Association, including funds, securities and evidences of indebtedness, and shall keep the financial books of the Association in accordance with good accounting practices, except to the extent such responsibilities are delegated to the manager of the Association, if any; and he shall perform all other duties incident to the office of Treasurer.
- 5.6. The compensation, if any, of all officers and the compensation of all employees of the Association shall be fixed by the Directors. The provision that Directors receive no compensation unless determined by the members shall not preclude the Board of Directors from employing a Director as an employee of the Association, nor preclude the contracting with a Director for the management of the Condominium. No officer shall solicit, offer to accept, or accept anything or service of a value for which consideration has not been provided for his own benefit or that of his immediate family, from any person

providing or proposing to provide goods or services to the Association. Any officer who knowingly so solicits, offers to accept, or accepts anything or service of a value is subject to a civil penalty pursuant to Section 718.501(1)(d)4., Florida Statutes However, the provisions hereof do not prohibit an officer from accepting services or items received in connection with trade fairs or education programs.

- 5.7. All officers serve at the pleasure of the Board of Directors. Any officer may be removed by a vote of not less than two-thirds (2/3) of the Directors at a special meeting called for that purpose.
- 6. <u>Fiscal Management</u>. The provisions for fiscal management of the Association set forth in the Declaration of Condominium and Articles of Incorporation shall be supplemented by the following provisions:
- 6.1. Accounts. The receipt and expenditures of the Association shall be credited and charged to accounts under the following classifications as shall be appropriate, all of which expenditures shall be Common Expenses:
- a. Current expense, which shall include all receipts and expenditures within the year for which the budget is made, including a reasonable allowance improvements for contingencies and working funds, except expenditures chargeable to reserves, to additional improvements or to operations. The balance in this fund at the end of each year shall be applied to reduce the Assessments for current expense for the succeeding year.
- b. Reserve for deferred maintenance, which shall include funds for maintenance items that occur less frequently than annually.
- c. Reserve for replacement, which shall include funds for repair or replacement required because of damage, destruction or obsolescence.
- d. Betterments, which shall include the funds to be used for capital expenditures for additional improvements or additional personal property that will be part of the Common Elements or Association Property, if any.
- 6.2. The Board of Directors shall adopt a budget for each calendar year that shall include the estimated funds required to defray the anticipated current common operating expenses and unpaid operating expenses previously incurred and to provide and maintain funds for the foregoing reserves according to good accounting practices. In addition, if the Association maintains Limited Common Elements with the cost to be shared only by those entitled to use such Limited Common Elements, the budget or a schedule attached to the budget, shall show amounts budgeted therefor. The reserve accounts for capital expenditures and deferred maintenance shall include, but are not limited to, roof replacement, building painting, and pavement resurfacing, regardless of the amount of deferred maintenance expense or replacement costs, and for any other item for which the deferred maintenance expense or replacement cost exceeds ten thousand dollars (\$10,000.00). In computing the amount to be reserved, the Association may adjust such replacement reserve assessments annually to account for extension of the useful life of a reserve item caused by deferred maintenance. Such reserve funds and any interest accruing thereon shall remain in the reserve account for authorized reserve expenditures, unless their use for other purposes is approved in advance by a vote of the majority of the voting interests present at a duly called meeting of the Association.
- a. The foregoing is subject to the vote of the majority of the members other than Developer present at a duly called meeting of the Association called to determine to provide no

reserves or reserves less adequate than required for that fiscal year. If such meeting has been called and such result is not attained or a quorum is not attained, the reserves as included in the budget shall go into effect. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, prior to turnover of control of the Association to the Unit Owners other than Developer, the Developer may vote to waive the reserves or reduce the funding of reserves for the first two (2) fiscal years of the operation of the Association, beginning with the fiscal year in which the initial Declaration is recorded, after which waiver or reduction shall require vote pursuant to the first two sentences of (a) hereinabove.

- b. If the budget is amended after adoption, a copy of the amended budget shall be furnished to each member.
- c. Where the annual budget for Common Expenses requires assessment against the Unit Owners in any fiscal or calendar year exceeding one hundred fifteen percent (115 %) of such Assessments for the previous year, the Board of Directors, upon written application of at least ten percent (10) of the Voting Interests of the Unit Owners, shall call a special meeting of the Unit Owners within sixty (60) days from receipt of such application upon not less than fourteen (14) days' written notice to each Unit Owner. At the special meeting the Unit Owners shall consider and adopt a budget. The budget shall be adopted by a vote of not less than a majority of the Voting Interests of the Unit Owners.
- Assessments. Assessments against the members and the Units for their proportionate shares of the annual budget shall be made by the Board of Directors quarterly in advance on or before the 15th day of the last month preceding the calendar quarter for which the Assessments are made. Such Assessments shall be due and payable on the first day of the calendar quarter for which they are made. If a quarterly Assessment is not made as required, an Assessment shall be presumed to have been made in the amount of the last prior Assessment. Following the Guarantee Period, during which the condominium Developer obligated itself to pay any amount of the common expenses incurred during the Guarantee Period and not produced by the assessments of the guaranteed level receivable from other Unit Owners, in the event the quarterly Assessment proves to be insufficient, the Assessment may be amended at any time by the Board of Directors if the Assessments for the year to date do not exceed the annual budget for that year. Any Assessments that do exceed such rotation (except for emergency Assessments) shall be subject to the majority approval of the Voting Interests of the Association. The unpaid portion of the amended Assessment shall be due upon the first day of the month next succeeding the month in which the amended Assessment is made or as otherwise provided by the Board of Directors. Notwithstanding anything contained herein to the contrary, the Board of Directors shall have the authority to require that the Assessments be paid more frequently than quarterly.
- 6.4. <u>Assessments for Emergencies</u>. Assessments for Common Expenses for emergencies of five hundred (\$500.00) or less per Unit may be levied by the Board of Directors in their sole judgment and discretion. Assessments for Common Expenses for emergencies in excess of five hundred (\$500.00) per Unit shall be made only after notice of the need for such proposed Assessment is given to the Unit Owners. After such notice and upon approval by at least one-half of the Voting Interests, the Assessment shall become effective and it shall be due and payable at such time and in such manner as the Board of Directors of the Association may require in the notice of such Assessment. Assessments for Common Expenses for emergencies in an amount of five hundred (\$500.00) per Unit or less shall become effective and shall be due and payable at such time and in such manner as the Board of Directors of the Association may require in the notice of such Assessment.
- 6.5. Extraordinary Repair Costs. If the Association shall be required to perform any maintenance, repairs or replacement work on any Unit or home within any Unit for which an individual Owner or Owners are financially responsible hereunder or under the Declaration or Articles, the Association shall demand payment of the cost incurred from the Owner or Owners thereof for the cost of

the work performed to recover the actual amounts expended by the Association in making or causing to be made such maintenance, repair, replacement work plus, in the event such work was attributable to a violation of any of the provisions of the Declaration of Condominium or the Rules and Regulations, an amount, to be determined by the Board of Directors not to exceed twenty-five percent (25 %) of the total amount thereof to cover overhead and administrative costs of the Association. The Board may cause the Association to discharge any mechanic's lien or other encumbrance which, in the opinion of the Board, may constitute a lien against the property owned or managed by the Association. When less than all of the Owners are responsible for the existence of any such lien, the Owners responsible shall be jointly and severally liable for any payment necessary to discharge the same and for all costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by reason of such lien and the Association shall demand payment from such Owners for such amounts.

- 6.6. <u>Assessments for Betterments and Reserves</u>. The Board of Directors of the Association may impose Assessments for betterments to the Condominium or Association Property, if any, on the members and may also establish reserves. In determining whether a current year's Assessments are in excess of the Assessments for the preceding year, Assessments for betterments and reserves shall be excluded.
- 6.7. Excess Assessments. Each year at the annual Owner's meeting or at a special meeting called for such purpose, the members shall determine whether to return to themselves any excess Assessments (other than extraordinary Assessments) not actually used in the managing, operating and maintaining of or the creation of reserves for the Condominium and the Association or to have the excess applied against Assessments for Common Expenses for the following year. In the event such excess is determined to be returned to the Owners, it shall be allocated pursuant to the pro rata share in the Common Surplus owned by each Unit.
- Collection. Assessments and installments of Assessments on Unit Owners not paid when due shall bear interest at the highest lawful rate per annum from the due date until paid. If a Unit Owner shall be in default in the payment of an installment of an Assessment, upon filing a claim of lien as provided herein below, the Association may accelerate the balance of the installments remaining of the Assessment due for the fiscal year from the Unit Owner. The Association may also assess an administrative late fee on delinquent Assessments in addition to such interest in an amount not to exceed the greater of twenty-five dollars (\$25.00) or five percent (5%) of each installment of the Assessment for each delinquent installment the payment of which is late. This Association has a lien on each Unit and the improvements thereon for any unpaid Assessments and other sums owing to the Association by the Unit Owner together with the above interest and for reasonable attorneys' fees incurred by the Association incident to the collection of the Assessment and enforcement of the lien. The lien shall be effective upon recording a claim of lien in the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida stating the description of the Condominium parcel, the name of the record owner, the name and address of the Association and the amount due and due dates. The claim of lien shall secure all unpaid Assessments, interest, late charges, costs and attorneys' fees which are due and which may accrue subsequent to the recording of the claim of lien and prior to entry of a final judgment of foreclosure. This lien shall be in effect for the period provided in the Florida Condominium Act. A Claim of Lien shall be signed and acknowledged by an officer or agent of this Association and upon payment the person making the payment shall be delivered a satisfaction of the lien in recordable form. Such payment received shall be applied first to interest accrued, next to late charges, then to any costs and reasonable attorney's fees incurred in collection, and lastly to the delinquent Assessment. This Association may bring an action in its name to foreclose a lien for Assessments unpaid in the manner a mortgage of real property is foreclosed and may also bring an action to recover a money judgment for the unpaid Assessments without waiving any claim of lien. If a member shall fail to pay any Assessment or part of it, when due, this Association through its Treasurer, shall mail a notice of default to the member, by certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, or by

delivery of a true copy of it to the Unit Owner, which notice shall state the intent of this Association to foreclose its lien to collect the unpaid Assessments. This Association shall proceed thirty (30) days following delivery of this notice and non-payment by the Unit Owner to file a foreclosure action and may apply therein to the court for the Unit Owner to pay a reasonable rental for the Unit and if granted, this Association shall be entitled to the appointment of a receiver to collect the same. The Association may bid on the Unit at foreclosure sale and may acquire and hold, lease, mortgage and convey the same. A first mortgagee or its successors or assignees who acquires title to a Unit by foreclosure or by deed in lieu of foreclosure, is liable for the unpaid Assessments that became due prior to the mortgagee's receipt of the deed, except as exempted by Section 718.116(1)(e), Florida Statutes, provided the first mortgagee joined the Association as a defendant in the mortgagee's foreclosure action. However, the mortgagee's liability is limited to a period not exceeding the maximum amount of time allowable per Section 718.116, Florida Statutes as amended from time to time. If any unpaid share of Common Expenses or Assessments is extinguished by foreclosure of such superior lien or by a deed in lieu of foreclosure thereof, the unpaid share of Common Expenses or Assessments are Common Expenses collectable from all Unit Owners in the Condominium in which that Unit is located.

- 6.9. The depository of the Association shall be in such bank or banks as shall be designated from time to time by the Board of Directors and in which the monies of the Association shall be deposited. Withdrawal of monies from such accounts shall be only by checks signed by such persons as are authorized by the directors. All funds shall be maintained separately in the Association's name. Reserve and operating funds may be commingled for purposes of investment but separate ledgers must be maintained for each account. No manager or business entity required to be licensed or registered under Section 468.432, Florida Statutes, and no agent, employee, officer, or director of the Association shall commingle any Association funds with his funds or with the funds of any other condominium association.
- 6.10. An annual audit of the accounts of the Association shall be made by a certified public accountant, only if requested by at least a majority of the voting interests present at a properly called meeting,, and a copy of the audit report shall be furnished to each member not later than March 1 of the year following the year for which the audit is requested and made. If no audit is requested, the report of cash receipts and expenditures required under Section 718.111(13)(d), Florida Statutes and Rule 61B-22.006 F.A.C. shall be provided by mail or by personal delivery to each Unit Owner.
- 6.11. <u>Fidelity bonds</u>. The Association shall obtain and maintain adequate insurance or fidelity bonding of all persons who control or disburse funds of the Association. As used herein, the term "persons who control or disburse funds of the Association" includes, but is not limited to, those individuals authorized to sign checks, and the President, Secretary, and Treasurer of the Association.

The Association shall also require any manager or management agent that handles funds for the Association to also be covered by its own adequate insurance policy or fidelity bond. All fidelity bonds must name the Association as an obligee, and all premiums on such bonds shall be paid by the Association as a Common Expense. The insurance policy or fidelity bonds shall cover the maximum funds that will be in the custody of the Association or its management agent at any time. The insurance policies or fidelity bonds shall include a provision requiring at least ten (10) days' prior written notice to the Association and to each holder of a first mortgage on any Unit in the Condominium before the policy or bond can be canceled or substantially modified for any reason.

6.12. <u>Unpaid Assessment Certificate</u>. Any Owner of a Unit or any mortgagee of any Unit may require this Association to furnish a certificate within fifteen (15) days of the request showing the amount of all unpaid Assessments and other moneys owed to the Association with respect to the Unit. Any person other than the Owner who relies upon the certificate shall be protected by it.

- 6.13. The Association shall maintain accounting records according to good accounting practices which shall be open to the inspection by Unit Owners or their authorized representatives at reasonable times and written summaries of which shall be supplied at least annually to Unit Owners or their authorized representatives. Such records shall include but not be limited to: (a) a record of all receipts and expenditures for the Condominium; and (b) an account for each Unit which shall designate the name and address of the Unit Owner, the amount of each Assessment, the date and amounts in which the Assessments come due, the amount paid upon the account, and the balance due. The Association shall also maintain all other official financial and other books and records required by the Florida Condominium Act. All accounting and financial records shall be maintained for at least seven (7) years.
- 7. <u>Parliamentary Rules</u>. Roberts' Rules of Order (latest edition) shall govern the conduct of Association meetings when not in conflict with the Declaration of Condominium, Articles of Incorporation, or these Bylaws.
 - 8. <u>Amendments</u>. These Bylaws may be amended in the following manner:
- 8.1. Notice of the subject matter of a proposed amendment shall be included in the notice of any meeting at which a proposed amendment is considered.
- 8.2. A resolution adopting a proposed amendment may be proposed by either the Board of Directors of the Association or by the members of the Association. Directors and members not present in person or by proxy at the meeting considering the amendment may express their approval in writing, providing such approval is delivered to the Secretary at or prior to the meeting. Except as elsewhere provided, such approvals must be either by:
- a. not less than sixty-six and two thirds percent $(66\ 2/3\%)$ of the entire membership of the Board of Directors and by not less than sixty-six and two thirds percent $(66\ 2/3\ \%)$ of the votes (Voting Interests) of the entire membership of the Association; or
- b. by not less than 80 % of the votes (Voting Interests) of the entire membership of the Association; or
- c. until the first election of Directors, by all of the members of the First Board of Directors.
- 8.3. Proviso. Provided, however, that no amendment shall discriminate against any Unit Owner nor against any Unit or class or group of Units or the Units in the Condominium unless the Unit Owners so affected shall consent and no amendment shall be made that is, in conflict with the Articles of Incorporation or the Declaration of Condominium. Provided further, no amendment may be adopted which would eliminate, modify, prejudice, abridge or otherwise adversely affect any rights, benefits, privileges or priorities reserved to the Developer or mortgagee without their consent, and no amendment shall be made to Sections 2.11, 3.3, 3.4.f., or 6.2.a. of the Bylaws without the written approval of the Developer of the Condominium so long as the Developer owns a Unit in the Condominium.
- 8.4. <u>Limitation on Amendments</u>. No Bylaw shall be revised or amended by reference to its title or number only. Proposals to amend existing Bylaws shall contain the full text of the Bylaws to be amended; new words shall be inserted in the text underlined, and words to be deleted shall be lined through with hyphen. However, if the proposed change is so extensive that this procedure would hinder rather than assist the understanding of the proposed amendment, it is not necessary to use underlining and hyphens as indicators of words added or deleted, but instead, a notation shall be inserted immediately

preceding the proposed amendment in substantially the following language: "Substantial rewording of Bylaws. See Bylaw for present text."

8.5. Execution and Recording. No amendment to the Bylaws shall be valid unless set forth in or annexed to a recorded amendment to the Declaration identifying the Official Records Book and first page wherein the Declaration has been recorded. A copy of each amendment shall be attached to a certificate certifying that the amendment was duly adopted as an amendment of the Declaration and Bylaws, which certificate shall be executed by the appropriate officers of the Association with the formalities of a deed. The amendment shall be effective when such certificate and amendment are recorded in the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida.

9. Official Records and Minutes.

- The Association shall maintain each of the items, which is applicable, identified within Section 718.111(12), Florida Statutes, to constitute the Official Records of the Association within this State. Minutes of all meetings of the members and all meetings of the Board of Directors shall be kept in a book and such Official Records and minutes shall be available for inspection by Unit Owners and board members and their authorized representatives at all reasonable times. The right to inspect shall include the right to make or obtain copies, at the reasonable expense, if any, of the Unit Owner. The Association may adopt reasonable rules in writing regarding the frequency, time, location, notice, and manner of record inspections and copying, provided the records are made available to a Unit Owner within five (5) working days after receipt of written request by the Board or its designee. The Association shall maintain, at its election, a number of copies of the Official Records and shall maintain an adequate number of copies of the Declaration of Condominium, Articles of incorporation, these Bylaws, and Association Rules, and all amendments to each of the foregoing, as well as the Question and Answer Sheet provided for in Section 718.504, Florida Statutes, and year-end financial information required by Section 718.111, Florida Statutes, on the Condominium or Association property to ensure the availability for inspection and/or copying to Unit Owners and prospective purchasers and may charge its actual costs for preparing and furnishing these documents to those requesting them. The Association shall update annually the Question and Answer Sheet. All minutes shall be retained for a period of not less than seven (7) years.
- 9.2. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the following records shall not be accessible to **Unit Owners:**
- Any record protected by the lawyer-client privilege as described in Section 90.502, Florida Statutes and any record protected by the work-product privilege, including any record which was prepared by an Association attorney or prepared at the attorney's express direction which reflects a mental impression, conclusion, litigation strategy, or legal theory of the attorney or the Association, and which was prepared exclusively for civil or criminal litigation or for adversarial administrative proceedings, or which was prepared in anticipation of imminent civil or criminal litigation, or imminent adversarial administrative proceedings until the conclusion of the litigation or adversarial administrative proceedings.
- b. Information obtained by an Association in connection with the approval of the lease, sale, or other transfer of a Unit.
 - Medical records of Unit Owners.
- Association May Acquire and Enter Into Agreements. Subsequent to the recording of the Declaration of Condominium the Association may acquire or enter into agreements whereby it acquires

leaseholds, memberships and other possessory or use interests in real and personal property, including but not limited to, country clubs, golf courses, marinas and other recreational facilities, whether or not contiguous to the Condominium, for the enjoyment, recreation or other use or benefit of the members, and the expense of rental, membership fees, operations, replacements and other undertakings in connection therewith shall be part of the Common Expenses. The Board of Directors of the Association may adopt covenants and restrictions relating to the use of such facilities.

- 11. Fines. The Association may levy reasonable fines against a Unit for failure of the Owner of the Unit or its occupant, licenses or invitee to comply with any provision of the Declaration, the Association Bylaws, or Rules and Regulations of the Association. No fine shall become a lien against a Unit. No fine shall exceed the maximum allowed by law nor shall any fine be levied except after giving at least 14 days' written notice and opportunity for a hearing to the Unit Owner and, if applicable, its licensee or invitee. The hearing must be held before a committee of other Unit Owners. If the committee does not agree with the fine, the fine may not be so levied. No fine may exceed one hundred (\$100 per violation. However, a fine may be levied on the basis of each day of a continuing violation, with a single notice and opportunity for hearing, provided that no such fine shall in the aggregate exceed one thousand dollars (\$1,000.00).
- 12. <u>Mandatory Non-binding Arbitration</u>. Mandatory non-binding arbitration as provided for in Section 718.1255, Florida Statutes, shall be conducted respecting disputes as defined therein.
- 13. <u>Certificate of Compliance</u>. A certificate of compliance from a licensed electrical contractor or electrician may be accepted by the Association's Board as evidence of compliance of the Condominium Units to the applicable Fire and Life Safety Code.
- 14. <u>Common Elements: Limited Power to Convey.</u> The Board of Directors has the limited power, without the joinder of any Unit Owner, to convey a portion of the Common Elements to a condemning authority for the purpose of providing utility easements, right-of-way expansion or other public purposes, whether negotiated or as a result of eminent domain proceedings.
- 15. <u>Savings Clause</u>. Notwithstanding anything herein contained or implied to the contrary, in the event any provision or, time frame contained in these Bylaws conflict with a mandatory provision or time frame of the Florida Condominium Act or the Rules of the Florida Division of Condominiums, Timeshares, and Mobile Homes then such provision or time frame of the Bylaws shall be deemed automatically amended to comply with such mandatory provision or time frame.

The foregoing were adopted as the Bylaws of 332 Cocoanut Condominium Association, Inc., a corporation not for profit under the laws of the State of Florida, at a meeting of the Board of Directors held on the 19th day of January , 2021.

332 Cocoanut Condominium Association, Inc., a Florida corporation not for profit

Mark Famiglio

Its: President and Director

- b. The non-compliance shall be presented to the Board of Directors and a Committee of unit Owners formed for that purpose after which the Board of Directors and the Committee shall hear arguments concerning the alleged violation and the levy of a fine or fines. A written decision of the Board of Directors and the Committee shall be submitted to the Owner or occupant by no later than twenty-one (21) days after the Board of Directors' meeting. If the Committee does not agree with the fine, the fine may not be levied.
- The Board of directors may impose a fine against the Unit Owner in such amount as c. may be permitted by law.
- d. Fines shall be paid not later than thirty (30) days after notice of the imposition.
- There fines shall not be construed to be exclusive and shall exist in addition to all e. other rights and remedies to which the Association may be otherwise legally entitled.
- 42. DEVELOPER EXCLUSION. Except as otherwise required by law, these Rules and Regulations shall not apply to the Developer, to the Developer's agents, employees or contractors, or to Units owned by Developer until conveyed. They shall apply, however, to all other Owners and occupants of Units. The Board of Directors may (but need not) grant relief to one or more Unit Owners from specific Rules and Regulations upon written request for such relief and good cause shown (as determined by the Board in its sole opinion).

These Rules and Regulations were adopted by vote of the Board of Directors of 332 Cocoanut Condominium Association, Inc. on this 19th Day of January , 2021.

> 332 COCOANUT CONDOMINIUM ASSOCIATION, INC.

Mark Eamiglio By:

As Its: President

EXHIBIT "F"

ESTIMATED OPERATING BUDGET

Beginning	January 1, 2021 and Ending December 31, 2021				
			Total SF	88,310	100%
			Commercial	9,898	11%
			Residential	78,412	89%
		Residential	Shared Common		
		Only Common	Expenses Between	Consolidated	Consolidated
		•	•		
INCONT.		Expenses	Residential and	•	Total Budget
<u>INCOME</u>		Annual	Commercial Annual	Annually	Monthly
	Operating Assessments	\$6,000	\$135,264		
	Reserve Assessments	\$3,100	\$29,250	\$32,350	\$2,690
	Developer Subsidy				
	Interest Income				
TOTAL INC	OME				
CONANAONI	EXPENSES:				
-CIVILVIOIN	Administration of the Association				
			\$600	¢coo	ć r
	Association Fees, Licenses & Dues:				•
	Fees Payable to Division of Condominiums		\$144		\$1
	Accounting		\$4,800	\$4,800	\$40
	Legal Fees		4	4	4
	Office Expenses / Supplies	***	\$1,800	\$1,800	\$150
	Total Amortization		\$7,344	\$7,344	\$612
	Management Fees		\$12,000	\$12,000	\$1,000
	Insurance		\$30,000	\$30,000	\$2,500
	Salarias				
	<u>Salaries</u>		Ć4 200	Ć4 200	ćas
	Janitorial		\$4,200		\$350
	Maintenance	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	\$6,000		\$50
	Total Salaries		\$10,200	\$10,200	\$85
	<u>Contracts</u>				
	Fire Alarm Monitoring		\$660	\$660	\$5
	Pest Control: Common Areas		\$4,800	\$4,800	\$40
	Total Contracts		\$5,460	\$5,460	\$455
	•				
	Maintenance & Repairs				
	Pool	\$3,600		\$3,600	\$30
	Grounds / Landscaping		\$7,200	\$7,200	\$60
	Exterior Window Cleaning (Annual)		\$4,800	\$4,800	\$40
	Parking Lot	\$1,800		\$1,800	\$15
	Air Condition maint (common area)				
	Total Maintenance Fee	\$5,400	\$22,260	\$27,660	\$2,305

Electric (Common area only)		Utilities				
Security Provisions		Electric (Common area only)		\$18,000	\$18,000	
Total Utilities		Water & Sewer		\$30,000		
Total Utilities \$600 \$48,000 \$48,600 \$4,050 Taxes Upon Association Property N/A N/A <td< th=""><th></th><th>Gas (pool heater, grill)</th><th>\$600</th><th></th><th>•</th><th></th></td<>		Gas (pool heater, grill)	\$600		•	
Taxes Upon Association Property N/A N/A N/A N/A Taxes Upon Leased Areas N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Security Provisions N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Other Expenses (Misc.) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Operating Capital N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Expenses for a Unit Owner N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Rent for Recreational and Other Commonly Used Facilities N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Rent payable by unit owner under recreational lease N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Rent for the Unit subject to lease N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Contingency Reserve N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Reserves: See Reserve page for Prorate Share Details \$2,500 \$135,264 \$11,764 \$11,772 Reserves: See Reserve page for Prorate Share Details \$600 \$00,00 \$15,000						
Taxes Upon Leased Areas N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A		Total Utilities	\$600	\$48,000	\$48,600	\$4,050
Security Provisions N/A		Taxes Upon Association Property	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Other Expenses (Misc.) N/A N/A N/A N/A Operating Capital N/A N/A N/A N/A Expenses for a Unit Owner N/A N/A N/A N/A Rent for Recreational and Other Commonly Used Facilities N/A N/A N/A N/A Rent payable by unit owner under recreational lease N/A N/A N/A N/A Rent for the Unit subject to lease N/A N/A N/A N/A Contingency Reserve N/A N/A N/A N/A Reserves: See Reserve page for Prorate Share Details Pool Equipment \$2,500 \$135,264 \$141,264 \$11,772 Reserves: See Reserve page for Prorate Share Details Pool Equipment \$2,500 \$500		Taxes Upon Leased Areas	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Operating Capital N/A N/A N/A N/A Expenses for a Unit Owner N/A N/A N/A N/A Rent for Recreational and Other Commonly Used Facilities N/A N/A N/A N/A Rent payable by unit owner under recreational lease N/A N/A N/A N/A Rent for the Unit subject to lease N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Contingency Reserve N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Reserves: See Reserve page for Prorate Share Details Pool Equipment \$2,500 \$2,500 \$208.33 Pool Finish/Copings \$600 \$15,000 \$1,500 \$1,500 Pavement Striping & Striping \$3,000 \$3,000 \$2,500 HVAC Units: common areas only \$7,500 \$7,500 \$625.00 Roof Membrane / Flashing \$1,250 \$1,250 \$104.17 Elevators \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,08.33 TOTAL RESERVES \$3,100 \$29,250 \$32,350 \$2,696		Security Provisions	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Expenses for a Unit Owner N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A Rent for Recreational and Other Commonly Used Facilities Rent payable by unit owner under recreational lease N/A		Other Expenses (Misc.)	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Rent for Recreational and Other Commonly Used Facilities N/A		Operating Capital	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Rent payable by unit owner under recreational lease N/A		Expenses for a Unit Owner	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Rent for the Unit subject to lease N/A		•	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Contingency Reserve N/A N/A N/A N/A Total Expenses (Without Reserves) \$6,000 \$135,264 \$141,264 \$11,772 Reserves: See Reserve page for Prorate Share Details Pool Equipment \$2,500 \$2,500 \$208.33 Pool Finish/Copings \$600 \$600 \$50.00 Painting (stucco) \$15,000 \$15,000 \$1,250.00 Pavement Striping & Striping \$3,000 \$3,000 \$250.00 HVAC Units: common areas only \$7,500 \$7,500 \$625.00 Roof Membrane / Flashing \$1,250 \$1,250 \$104.17 Elevators \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,500 \$2,696 TOTAL RESERVES \$3,100 \$29,250 \$32,350 \$2,696		Rent payable by unit owner under recreational lease	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Reserves: See Reserve page for Prorate Share Details Pool Equipment \$2,500 \$2,500 \$208.33 Pool Finish/Copings \$6,000 \$15,000 \$50.00 \$50.00 Painting (stucco) \$15,000 \$15,000 \$1,250.00 Pavement Striping & Striping \$3,000 \$3,000 \$250.00 Roof Membrane / Flashing \$1,250 \$1,250 \$104.17 Elevators \$2,500 \$2,500 \$208.33 TOTAL RESERVES \$3,100 \$29,250 \$32,350 \$2,696 \$2,696 \$3.000 \$25,000 \$25,000 \$208.33 \$20.000 \$20.00		Rent for the Unit subject to lease	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Reserves: See Reserve page for Prorate Share Details Pool Equipment \$2,500 \$2,500 \$208.33 Pool Finish/Copings \$600 \$50.00 \$50.00 Painting (stucco) \$15,000 \$15,000 \$1,250.00 Pavement Striping & Striping \$3,000 \$3,000 \$250.00 HVAC Units: common areas only \$7,500 \$7,500 \$625.00 Roof Membrane / Flashing \$1,250 \$1,250 \$104.17 Elevators \$2,500 \$2,500 \$208.33 TOTAL RESERVES \$3,100 \$29,250 \$32,350 \$2,696		Contingency Reserve	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
Pool Equipment \$2,500 \$2,500 \$208.33 Pool Finish/Copings \$600 \$50.00 \$50.00 Painting (stucco) \$15,000 \$15,000 \$1,250.00 Pavement Striping & Striping \$3,000 \$3,000 \$250.00 HVAC Units: common areas only \$7,500 \$7,500 \$625.00 Roof Membrane / Flashing \$1,250 \$1,250 \$104.17 Elevators \$2,500 \$2,500 \$208.33 TOTAL RESERVES \$3,100 \$29,250 \$32,350 \$2,696	Total Exper	nses (Without Reserves)	\$6,000	\$135,264	\$141,264	\$11,772
Pool Finish/Copings \$600 \$50.00 Painting (stucco) \$15,000 \$15,000 \$1,250.00 Pavement Striping & Striping \$3,000 \$3,000 \$250.00 HVAC Units: common areas only \$7,500 \$7,500 \$625.00 Roof Membrane / Flashing \$1,250 \$1,250 \$104.17 Elevators \$2,500 \$2,500 \$208.33 TOTAL RESERVES \$3,100 \$29,250 \$32,350 \$2,696		Reserves: See Reserve page for Prorate Share Details				
Painting (stucco) \$15,000 \$15,000 \$1,250.00 Pavement Striping & Striping \$3,000 \$250.00 HVAC Units: common areas only \$7,500 \$7,500 \$625.00 Roof Membrane / Flashing \$1,250 \$1,250 \$104.17 Elevators \$2,500 \$2,500 \$208.33 TOTAL RESERVES \$3,100 \$29,250 \$32,350 \$2,696		Pool Equipment	\$2,500		\$2,500	\$208.33
Pavement Striping & Striping \$3,000 \$3,000 \$250.00 HVAC Units: common areas only \$7,500 \$7,500 \$625.00 Roof Membrane / Flashing \$1,250 \$1,250 \$104.17 Elevators \$2,500 \$2,500 \$208.33 TOTAL RESERVES \$3,100 \$29,250 \$32,350 \$2,696		Pool Finish/Copings	\$600		\$600	\$50.00
HVAC Units: common areas only \$7,500 \$7,500 \$625.00 Roof Membrane / Flashing \$1,250 \$1,250 \$104.17 Elevators \$2,500 \$2,500 \$208.33 TOTAL RESERVES \$3,100 \$29,250 \$32,350 \$2,696		Painting (stucco)		\$15,000	\$15,000	\$1,250.00
Roof Membrane / Flashing \$1,250 \$1,250 \$104.17 Elevators \$2,500 \$2,500 \$208.33 TOTAL RESERVES \$3,100 \$29,250 \$32,350 \$2,696		Pavement Striping & Striping		\$3,000	\$3,000	\$250.00
Elevators \$2,500 \$2,500 \$208.33 TOTAL RESERVES \$3,100 \$29,250 \$32,350 \$2,696		HVAC Units: common areas only		\$7,500	\$7,500	\$625.00
TOTAL RESERVES \$3,100 \$29,250 \$32,350 \$2,696		Roof Membrane / Flashing		\$1,250	\$1,250	\$104.17
72,00				\$2,500	\$2,500	\$208.33
TOTAL EXPENSES WITH RESERVES \$9,100 \$164,514 \$173,614 \$14,468		TOTAL RESERVES	\$3,100	\$29,250	\$32,350	\$2,696
		TOTAL EXPENSES WITH RESERVES	\$9,100	\$164,514	\$173,614	\$14,468

ESTIMATED ASSOCIATION ASSESSMENT BY UNIT TYPE: See Exhibit #1 for Prorate Share Details

THE BUDGET CONTAINED IN THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR HAS BEEN PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE CONDOMINIUM ACT AND IS A GOOD FAITH ESTIMATE ONLY AND REPRESENTS AN APPROXIMATION OF FUTURE EXPENSES BASED ON FACTS AND CIRCUMSTANCES EXISTING AT THE TIME OF ITS PREPARATION. ACTUAL COST OF SUCH ITEMS MAY EXCEED THE ESTIMATED COSTS. SUCH CHANGES IN COST DO NOT CONSTITUTE MATERIAL ADVERSE CHANGES IN THE OFFERING.

RESIDENTIAL UNITS ONLY

2020 RESERVE BUDGET

Beginning January 1, 2020 and Ending December 31, 2020

		1	2	3	4	5	6
		Estimated Life Expectancy	Remaining	Estimated Replacement Cost	Balance	Reserve	Annual Reserve Requirement
ACCT#	ASSET						
	Pool Equipment	10	10	\$25,000	\$0	\$25,000	\$2,500
	Pool Finish/Copings	25	25	\$15,000	\$0	\$15,000	\$600
	Total			\$40,000	\$0	\$40,000	\$3,100

COMMON EXPENSE RESERVES

		1	2	3	4	5	6
		Estimated Life Expectancy	Estimated Remaining Life	Estimated Replacement Cost	The Control of the Co	400 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200 200	Annual Reserve Requirement
ACCT#	ASSET						
	Painting (stucco)	5	5	\$75,000	\$0	\$75,000	\$15,000
	Pavement Striping & Striping	5	5	\$15,000	\$0	\$15,000	\$3,000
	HVAC Units - common areas only	10	10	\$75,000	\$0	\$75,000	\$7,500
*	Roof Membrane / Flashing	20	20	\$25,000	\$0	\$25,000	\$1,250
	Elevators	20	20	\$50,000	\$0	\$50,000	\$2,500
	Total			\$240,000	\$0	\$240,000	\$29,250

- Note 1: These reserves are computed using the straight line method.
- Note 2: Estimated Life Expectancy, Estimated Remining Life and Estimated Replacement Costs are based on information secured from vendors, contractors and engineers. These estimates will need to be adjusted annually each year using then current available information.
- Note 3: The Annual Reserve Required Quarterly and Monthly breakdown of Reserve Expenses, are listed on Exhibit *1*. (Attached).
- Note 4: Pursuant to S.718.122(f)2l, Florida Statutes, Developer intends to vote to waive reserves for the first fiscal year beginning with the fiscal year in which the Condominium Declaration is recorded and reserves right to waive the second fiscal year and/or prior to turnover of control of the Association to the Unit Owners other than Developer.
- Note 5: Pursuant to Florida Statutes reserves for the fiscal year when the Association is created will be waived by Association action. Unless waived in future years reserves will be included in assessment and the budget as required by statute.
- Note 6: The Board of Directors deems the foregoing budget sufficient and accordingly no provision for operating capital has been established. Further in the event operating capital is necessary, same shall be provided through the Condominium working capital funds as established by the Declaration on Condominium
- Note 7: Figures used have been rounded
- Note 8: Developer's exemption regarding Assessments is set forth in the Declaration of Condominium delivered to the Unit Owner
- Note 9: The local taxing authority has yet to determine the taxable value of the Association Properly. The taxable value will be determined at a date subsequent to the recording on the Plat and Declarations. The Association shall be responsible for any taxes that may be due as determined by the local taxing authority.
- Note 10: Developer may be in control of the Board of Directors of the Condominium during the period of operation for which this budget has been rendered.

	CONTRACTOR		BAS A	SHOP WAS I	UNIT'S		100 Z. 101.	100	沙龙连线	This role	COMMENSO	CONSINED
		原数 法		透析表示	TOTAL		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	建设建设			MONTHLY	VANAMENT
	NUMBER	FLOOR OR	UNIT	DESIGN	SQUARE FOOTAGE	PERCENTAGE OF	MAINTENANCE	ANNUAL MANTENANCE	MONTHLY	ANNUAL RESERVE	MANTENANCE AND RESERVE	MAINTENANCE AND RESERVE
	OF UNITS	LEVEL	NUMBER	TYPE		OWNERSHIP	ASSESSMENT	ASSESS MERT	ASSESSMENT	ASSESSMENT		
							\$500	\$6,000	\$25\$	\$3,100	\$758	\$9,100
FACING 4TH												
	1		301	Telluride	1,274	0.03140	\$16		\$8.11	\$97	\$24	\$286
	1		401	Austin	1,855	0.04572	\$23	\$274	\$11.81	\$142	\$35	\$416
	1	5	501	Sarasota	2,069	0.05100	\$25	\$306	\$13.17	\$158	\$39	\$464
ŀ	1		302	Tribeca	1,159	0.02857	\$14	\$171	\$7.38	\$89	\$22	\$260
	1		304	Tribeca	1,161	0.02857	\$14	\$172	\$7.38	\$89		\$260
	1		306	Tribeca	1,159	0.02857	\$14	\$171	\$7.38	\$89		\$260
İ	1		308	Tribeca	1,161	0.02862	\$14	\$172	\$7.39	\$89		\$260
1	1	3	310	Tribeca	1,159	0.02857	\$14	\$171	\$7.38	\$89	\$22	\$260
	1	3	312	Sundance	1,074	0.02647	\$13	\$159	\$6.84	\$82	\$20	\$241
	1		402	Tribeca	1,159	0.02857	\$14	\$171	\$7.38	\$89	\$22	\$260
1	1		404	Tribeca	1,161	0.02862	\$14	\$172	\$7.39	\$89	\$22	\$260
Į	1		406	Tribeca	1,159	0.02857	\$14	\$171	\$7.38		\$22	\$260
]	1		408	Tribeca	1,161	0.02862	\$14	\$172	\$7.39	\$89	\$22	\$260
}	1		410	Tribeca	1,159	0.02857	\$14		\$7.38	\$89		\$260
	1	4	412	Sundance	1,063	0.02620	\$13	\$157	\$6.77	\$81	\$20	\$238
-	1	r	502	Tribeca	1.059	0.02610	\$13	\$157	\$6.74	\$81	\$20	\$238
ŀ	1		504	Tribeca	1,059	0.02862	\$13	\$137	\$7.39	\$89	\$20	\$250
ŀ	1		506	Tribeca	1,059	0.02610	\$13	\$157	\$6.74	\$81	\$20	\$238
ŀ	1		508	Tribeca	1,161	0.02862	\$14	\$172	\$7.39	\$89	\$22	\$260
ŀ	1		510	Tribeca	1,059	0.02610	\$13	\$157	\$6.74	\$81	\$20	\$238
	1		512	Sundance	1.074	0.02647	\$13	\$159	\$6.84	\$82	\$20	\$241
FACING ALLE	Y											
[1	3	303	Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76	\$19	\$223
[1		305	Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76		\$223
	1		307	Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76		\$223
- 1	1		309	Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76	\$19	\$223
1	1	3	311	Toronto	1,053	0.02596	\$13	\$156	\$6.71	\$80	\$20	\$236
- 1							4		46.00	4		
}	1		403	Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76	\$19	\$223
-	1		405 407	Cannes	992 992	0.02445 0.02445	\$12 \$12	\$147 \$147	\$6.32 \$6.32	\$76 \$76	\$19 \$19	\$223 \$223
}	1		407	Cannes Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12	\$147 \$147	\$6.32	\$76	\$19	\$223
1	1		411	Toronto	1,053	0.02596	\$13	\$156	\$6.71	\$80	\$20	\$236
ŀ			411	TOTOTILO	1,033	0.02390	313	\$130	30.71	280	3 20	\$230
ŀ	1	5	503	Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76	\$19	\$223
ŀ	1		505	Cannes	992	0,02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76		\$223
t	1		507	Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76		\$223
İ	1		509	Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76		\$223
Ì	1		511	Toronto	1,053	0.02596	\$13	\$156	\$6.71	\$80	\$20	\$236
	36				40,569	1,00000	\$500	\$6,000		\$3,100	\$758	\$9,100

Exhibit #2
SHARED COMMON EXPENSES BETWEEN RESIDENTIAL UNITS AND COMMERCIAL UNITS
Beginning January 1, 2020 and Ending December 31, 2020

1	CDA9827	7. 4. salabe	2004 Table	25年第16年	UNIT'S	112000000000		in constitution	-4400ez, 64	dettima	COMBINED	COMMED
					TOTAL	Great Street			4.4.3329		MONTHLY.	ANNEJAL
				UNIT'S	SQUARE	PERCENTAGE	MONTHLY	ANNUAL	MONTHLY	AHHUAL	MAINTENANCE	MAINTENANCE
	NUMBER	FLOOR OR	UNIT	DESIGN	FOOTAGE	OF .	MAINTENANCE		RESERVE	RESERVE	AND RESERVE	AND RESERVE
	OF UNITS	LEVEL	NUMBER	TYPE	305,777, 309,	OWNERSHIP	ASSESSMENT	ASSESSMENT	ASSESSMENT			ASSESSMENT
FACONO 4711							\$11,272	\$135,264	\$2,438	\$29,250	\$13,710	\$1 54. 514
FACING 4TH	1		301	Telluride	1,274	0.02542	\$287	\$3,439	\$61.97	\$744	\$349	\$4,183
l	1		401	Austin	1,855	0.02342	\$417		\$90.23	\$1,083	\$507	\$6,090
	1		501	Sarasota	2,069	0.04129	\$465		\$100.64	\$1,208	\$566	
				<u> </u>								
	1	3	302	Tribeca	1,159	0.02313	\$261	\$3,128	\$56.38	\$677	\$317	\$3,805
	1		304	Tribeca	1,161	0.02317	\$261	\$3,134	\$56.47	\$678	\$318	\$3,812
	1		306	Tribeca	1,159	0.02313	\$261	\$3,128	\$56.38		\$317	\$3,805
	1		308	Tribeca	1,161	0.02317	\$261		\$56.47	\$678	\$318	\$3,812
	1		310 312	Tribeca Sundance	1,159 1,074	0.02313 0.02143	\$261 \$242	\$3,128 \$2,899	\$56.38 \$52.24	\$677 \$627	\$317 \$294	\$3,805
		3	312	Sundance	1,074	0.02143	\$242	\$2,899	\$52.24	\$627	\$294	\$3,526
	1	4	402	Tribeca	1,159	0.02313	\$261	\$3,128	\$56.38	\$677	\$317	\$3,805
	1		404	Tribeca	1,161	0.02317	\$261	\$3,134	\$56.47	\$678	\$318	\$3,812
	1		406	Tribeca	1,159	0.02313	\$261	\$3,128	\$56.38	\$677	\$317	\$3,805
(1		408	Tribeca	1,161	0.02317	\$261	\$3,134	\$56.47	\$678	\$318	\$3,812
	1		410	Tribeca	1,159	0.02313	\$261	\$3,128	\$56.38		\$317	\$3,805
	1	4	412	Sundance	1,063	0.02121	\$239	\$2,869	\$51.71	\$620	\$291	\$3,490
			500	T-0	4.050	0.00440	4000	42.050	A54 54	A540	4200	40.15
	1		502 504	Tribeca Tribeca	1,059 1,161	0,02113 0.02317	\$238 \$261	\$2,859 \$3,134	\$51.51 \$56.47	\$618 \$678	\$290 \$318	\$3,477 \$3,812
	1		506	Tribeca	1,059	0.02317	\$238		\$51.51	\$618	\$290	\$3,812
ì	1		508	Tribeca	1,161	0.02317	\$261	\$3,134	\$56.47	\$678	\$318	\$3,812
	1		510	Tribeca	1,059	0.02113	\$238		\$51.51	\$618	\$290	\$3,477
1	1	5	512	Sundance	1,074	0.02143	\$242	\$2,899	\$52.24	\$627	\$294	\$3,526
FACING ALLE												
	1		303	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$223	\$2,678	\$48.25	\$579	\$271	\$3,257
	1		305	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$223	\$2,678	\$48.25	\$579	\$271	\$3,257
	1		307	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$223	\$2,678	\$48.25	\$579	\$271	\$3,257
ļ	1		309 311	Cannes Toronto	992 1,053	0.01980 0.02101	\$223 \$237	\$2,678 \$2,842	\$48.25 \$51.22	\$579 \$615	\$271 \$288	\$3,257 \$3,457
l			211	TOTOTALO	1,033	0.02101	3237	32,642	331.22	3013	\$266	\$3,437
	1	4	403	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$223	\$2,678	\$48.25	\$579	\$271	\$3,257
	1		405	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$223	\$2,678	\$48.25	\$579	\$271	\$3,257
	1	4	407	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$223	\$2,678	\$48.25	\$579	\$271	\$3,257
	1		409	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$223	\$2,678	\$48.25	\$579	\$271	\$3,257
- 1	1	4	411	Toronto	1,053	0.02101	\$237	\$2,842	\$51.22	\$615	\$288	\$3,457
1			703	C	002	0.01000	6222	62.670	640.05	4570	6274	40.753
	1		503 505	Cannes Cannes	992 992	0.01980 0.01980	\$223 \$223	\$2,678 \$2,678	\$48.25 \$48.25	\$579 \$579	\$271 \$271	\$3,257 \$3,257
	1		507	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$223	\$2,678	\$48.25	\$579	\$271	\$3,257
Ì	1		509	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$223	\$2,678	\$48.25	\$579	\$271	\$3,257
İ	1		511	Toronto	1,053	0.02101	\$237	\$2,842	\$51.22	\$615	\$288	\$3,457
Commercial												
	1	. 1	C-Unit 101		828	0.01652	\$186	\$2,235	\$40.28	\$483	\$227	\$2,718
	1		C-Unit 102		524	0.01046	\$118	\$1,414	\$25.49	\$306	\$143	\$1,720
,	1		C-Unit 103		1064	0.02123	\$239		\$51.76	\$621	\$291	\$3,493
	1		C-Unit 104		1307	0.02608	\$294	\$3,528	\$63.58	\$763	\$358	\$4,291
	1	2	C-Unit 201		5,819	0.11512	\$1,309		\$283.05	\$3,397	\$1,592	\$19,104
	41				50,111	1.00000	\$11,272	\$135,264	\$2,438	\$29,250	\$13,710	\$164,514

EXHIBIT #3
COMBINED ASSESSMENTS TOTALS
Beginning January 1, 2020 and Ending December 31, 2020

ı	A PLANTING SE	of Children Some and	w. 1. 775000	500 - C. 1000	98 GR - 129	Assessative Publication	was a second of the	ASSISTANCE AND A SE	estation of the	Pamagone vel
		1	545.32	14,23,25		X4445			74.00	244 Paga
						ATE FALL	RESIDENTIAL	SHAREO	Nation (A)	
Ì	7277			的人工	UNIT'S		COMBINED	COMBINED		
					TOTAL		MONTHLY	MONTHLY	COMBINED	COMBINED
	3464	1. 新手牌。	24676	CUNIT'S	SQUARE	PERCENTAGE	MAINTENANCE	MAINTENANCE	MONTHLY	ANNUAL
	NUMBER	FLOOR OR	UNIT	DESIGN	FOOTAGE	OF.	AND RESERVE	AND RESERVE	GRAND	GRAND
4	OF UNITS	LEVEL	NUMBER	TYPE	100 M	OWNERSHIP	ASSESSMENT	ASSESSMENT	TOTAL	TOTAL
							\$758	\$13,710	\$14,468	\$173,614.00
FACING 4TH							4.2		4	
	1		301	Telluride	1,274	0.02542	\$19	\$349	\$368	\$4,413.89
	1		401	Austin	1,855	0.03702	\$28	\$507	\$536	\$6,426.81
	1	5	501	Sarasota	2,069	0.04129	\$31	\$566	\$597	\$7,168.23
							4.0	40.0	400-	
	1		302	Tribeca	1,159	0.02313	\$18	\$317	\$335	\$4,015.46
ļ	1		304	Tribeca	1,161	0.02317	\$18	\$318	\$335	\$4,022.39
	1		306	Tribeca	1,159	0.02313	\$18	\$317	\$335	\$4,015.46
ŀ			308	Tribeca	1,161	0.02317	\$18	\$318	\$335	\$4,022.39
-	1 1		310	Tribeca	1,159	0.02313	\$18	\$317	\$335	\$4,015.46
		3	312	Sundance	1,074	0.02143	\$16	\$294	\$310	\$3,720.97
ŀ			403	Tribana	1 150	0.03313	Ć10	6247	Ć	C4 015 4C
ŀ	1	4		Tribeca Tribeca	1,159 1,161	0.02313 0.02317	\$18 \$18	\$317 \$318	\$335 \$335	\$4,015.46 \$4,022.39
}	1		406	Tribeca	1,159	0.02317	\$18	\$316	\$335	\$4,022.39
	1		408	Tribeca	1,161	0.02313	\$18	\$317	\$335	\$4,022.39
ŀ	1		410	Tribeca	1,159	0.02317	\$18	\$317	\$335	\$4,022.39
ŀ	1		412	Sundance	1,063	0.02313	\$16	\$291	\$307	\$3,682.86
ŀ			412	Juliuance	1,003	0.02121	210	7231	7307	33,082.00
}	1	5	502	Tribeca	1,059	0.02113	\$16	\$290	\$306	\$3,669.00
ŀ	1		504	Tribeca	1,161	0.02317	\$18	\$318	\$335	\$4,022.39
	1		506	Tribeca	1,059	0.02317	\$16	\$290	\$306	\$3,669.00
ŀ	1		508	Tribeca	1,161	0.02317	\$18	\$318	\$335	\$4,022.39
ŀ	1		510	Tribeca	1,059	0.02113	\$16	\$290	\$306	\$3,669.00
ŀ	1		512	Sundance	1,074	0.02143	\$16	\$294	\$310	\$3,720.97
FACING ALLE			311	oundance.	2,0. 1	U.OLI 13	720	7234	\$320	\$5,720.57
17101110	1	3	303	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$15	\$271	\$286	\$3,436.87
İ	1		305	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$15	\$271	\$286	\$3,436.87
ţ	1		307	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$15	\$271	\$286	\$3,436.87
	1		309	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$15	\$271	\$286	\$3,436.87
ı	1		311	Toronto	1,053	0.02101	\$16	\$288	\$304	\$3,648.21
ı			·				•		• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	¥=/=
Ì	1	4	403	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$15	\$271	\$286	\$3,436.87
Ţ	1	4	405	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$15	\$271	\$286	\$3,436.87
Ī	1	4	407	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$15	\$271	\$286	\$3,436.87
	1	4	409	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$15	\$271	\$286	\$3,436.87
Ī	1	4	411	Toronto	1,053	0.02101	\$16	\$288	\$304	\$3,648.21
[
	1		503	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$15	\$271	\$286	\$3,436.87
	_1	5	505	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$15	\$271	\$286	\$3,436.87
	1		507	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$15	\$271	\$286	\$3,436.87
	1		509	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$15	\$271	\$286	\$3,436.87
	1	5	511	Toronto	1,053	0.02101	\$16	\$288	\$304	\$3,648.21
Commercial										
Į.	1		C-Unit 101		828	0.01652	\$13	\$227	\$239	\$2,868.68
L	1		C-Unit 102		524	0.01046	\$8	\$143	\$151	\$1,815.44
Ĺ	1		C-Unit 103		1064	0.02123	\$16	\$291	\$307	\$3,686.32
1	1		C-Unit 104		1307	0.02608	\$20	\$358	\$377	\$4,528.22
L	1	2	C-Unit 201		5,819	0.11612	\$88	\$1,592	\$1,680	\$20,160.44
_	41				50,111	1.00000	\$614	\$11,099	\$11,713	\$140,555

Exhibit "G"

Percentage Share of Common Elements excluding Residential Common Elements for all Units

Exhibit #2
SHARED COMMON EXPENSES BETWEEN RESIDENTIAL UNITS AND COMMERCIAL UNITS
Beginning January 1, 2020 and Ending December 31, 2020

i	NUMBER OF UNITS	FLOOR OR	UNIT	UNITS DESIGN	UNIT'S TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE	PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP	MONTHLY MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT	ANNUAL MAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT	MONTHLY AESERVE ASSESSMENT	ANINUAL RESERVE ASSESSMENT	ECOMMED MONTHLY MONTHLY MANUFACTURE MANUFA	COMBINED ANHUAL MAINTENANCE ANO RESERVE ASSESSMENT
	ESBALT MAIL						\$11,272	\$135,264	\$2,438	\$29,250	\$13,710	\$164,514
CING 4TH												
	1		301	Telluride	1,274	0.02542	\$287	\$3,439	\$61.97	\$744	\$349	\$4,183
	1		401	Austin	1,855	0.03702	\$417	\$5,007	\$90.23	\$1,083	\$507	\$6,090
	1	5	501	Sarasota	2,069	0.04129	\$465	\$5,585	\$100.64	\$1,208	\$566	\$6,793
	1	3	302	Tribeca	1,159	0.02313	\$261	\$3,128	\$56.38	\$677	\$317	\$3,805
	1		304	Tribeca	1,161	0.02317	\$261	\$3,134	\$56.47	\$678	\$318	\$3,812
	1		306	Tribeca	1,159	0.02313	\$261	\$3,128	\$56.38	\$677	\$317	\$3,805
	1		308	Tribeca	1,161	0.02317	\$261	\$3,134	\$56.47	\$678	\$318	\$3,812
	1	3	310	Tribeca	1,159	0.02313	\$261	\$3,128	\$56.38	\$677	\$317	\$3,805
	1	3	312	Sundance	1,074	0.02143	\$242	\$2,899	\$52.24	\$627	\$294	\$3,526
	1	4	402	Tribeca	1,159	0.02313	\$261	\$3,128	\$56.38	\$677	\$317	\$3,805
	1		404	Tribeça	1,161	0.02317	\$261	\$3,134	\$56.47	\$678	\$318	\$3,812
	1	4	406	Tribeca	1,159	0.02313	\$261	\$3,128	\$56.38	\$677	\$317	\$3,805
	1	4	408	Tribeca	1,161	0.02317	\$261	\$3,134	\$56.47	\$678	\$318	\$3,812
Î	1	4	410	Tribeca	1,159	0.02313	\$261	\$3,128	\$56.38	\$677	\$317	\$3,805
	1	4	412	Sundance	1,063	0.02121	\$239	\$2,869	\$51.71	\$620	\$291	\$3,490
	1	5	502	Tribeca	1.059	0.02113	\$238	\$2,859	\$51.51	\$618	\$290	\$3,477
- 1	1		504	Tribeca	1,161	0.02317	\$261	\$3,134	\$56.47	\$678	\$318	\$3,812
	1		506	Tribeca	1,059	0.02113	\$238	\$2,859	\$51.51	\$618	\$290	\$3,477
l	1	5	508	Tribeca	1,161	0.02317	\$261	\$3,134	\$56.47	\$678	\$318	\$3,812
	1		510	Tribeca	1,059	0.02113	\$238	\$2,859	\$51.51	\$618	\$290	\$3,477
<u>l</u>	1	5	512	Sundance	1,074	0.02143	\$242	\$2,899	\$52.24	\$627	\$294	\$3,526
DING ALLE			202		202	0.04000		£2.670	640.05	4==0	4074	
ŀ	1		303 305	Cannes	992 992	0.01980 0.01980	\$223 \$223	\$2,678 \$2,678	\$48.25 \$48.25	\$579 \$579	\$271 \$271	\$3,257 \$3,257
1	1		307	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$223	\$2,678	\$48.25	\$579	\$271	\$3,257
	1		309	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$223	\$2,678	\$48.25	\$579	\$271	\$3,257
	1		311	Toronto	1,053	0.02101	\$237	\$2,842	\$51.22	\$615	\$288	\$3,457
- 1	1		403	C	992	0.01980	\$223	\$2,678	\$48.25	\$579	\$271	44.252
- 1	1		405	Cannes Cannes	992	0.01980	\$223	\$2,678	\$48.25	\$579	\$2/1	\$3,257 \$3,257
i	1		407	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$223	\$2,678	\$48.25	\$579	\$271	\$3,257
ŀ	1		409	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$223	\$2,678	\$48.25	\$579	\$271	\$3,257
į	1		411	Toronto	1,053	0.02101	\$237	\$2,842	\$51.22	\$615	\$288	\$3,457
1	-					2.04.000	4222	62.570	640.05	4570	45-1	4
ŀ	1		503	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$223	\$2,678	\$48.25	\$579	\$271	\$3,257
1	1		505 507	Cannes Cannes	992 992	0.01980 0.01980	\$223 \$223	\$2,678 \$2,678	\$48.25 \$48.25	\$579 \$579	\$271 \$271	\$3,257
1	1		509	Cannes	992	0.01980	\$223	\$2,678	\$48.25	\$579	\$2/1	\$3,257 \$3,257
ŀ	1		511	Toronto	1,053	0.02101	\$237	\$2,842	\$51.22	\$615	\$288	\$3,257
nmercial _	اشــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــــ		J	TOTOTIC	1,033	0.02101	7237	42,042	V31.12	7015	7200	10,70
[1		C-Unit 101		828	0.01652	\$186	\$2,235	\$40.28	\$483	\$227	\$2,718
[1		C-Unit 102		524	0.01046	\$118	\$1,414	\$25.49	\$306	\$143	\$1,720
ļ	1		C-Unit 103		1064	0.02123	\$239	\$2,872	\$51.76	\$621	\$291	\$3,493
- 1	1		C-Unit 104 C-Unit 201		1307 5,819	0.02608 0.11612	\$294 \$1,309	\$3,528 \$15,707	\$63.58 \$283.05	\$763 \$3,397	\$358 \$1,592	\$4,291 \$19,104
Ĺ	41		C-OINC ZOI		50,111	1.00000	\$1,309	\$135,264	\$2,438	\$29,250	\$13,710	\$164,514

Exhibit "H"

Percentage Share of Residential Common Elements for Residential Units

EXHIBIT #1
RESIDENTIAL UNITS ONLY
Beginning January 1, 2020 and Ending December 31, 2020

	NUMBER OF UNITS	FLOOR OR LEVEL	UNIT NUMBER	UNIT'S DESIGN TYPE	UNIT'S TOTAL SQUARE FOOTAGE	PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP	AMONITHLY AMAINTENANCE ASSESSMENT 5500	ANNUAL MARYTENANCE ASSESSMENT S6,000	MONTHLY PLESERVE ASSESSMENT \$258	ANNUAL RESERVE : ASSESSMENT SALION	AND RESERVE ASSESSMENT	ASSESSMENT
FACING 4TH		<u> </u>			 		\$300	SOLEN	7450	- 33,100 mg	\$758	\$9,100
FAUNG 4111	1		301	Telluride	1,274	0.03140	\$16	\$188	\$8.11	\$97	\$24	\$286
	1		401	Austin	1,855	0.04572	\$23	\$274	\$11.81	\$142	\$35	\$416
	<u>1</u>		501	Sarasota	2,069	0.05100	\$25	\$306	\$13.17	\$158		\$464
ł		X	502	Surasoto	2,002	0.05200	723	7555	¥20.27	1 7250		7704
ŀ	1	3	302	Tribeca	1,159	0.02857	\$14	\$171	\$7.38	\$89	\$22	\$260
ł	1		304	Tribeca	1,161	0.02862	\$14	\$172	\$7.39	\$89	\$22	\$260
.	1		306	Tribeca	1,159	0.02857	\$14	\$171	\$7.38	\$89	\$22	\$260
I	1	3		Tribeca	1,161	0.02862	\$14	\$172	\$7.39	\$89	\$22	\$260
Ì	1	3	310	Tribeca	1,159	0.02857	\$14	\$171	\$7.38	\$89	\$22	\$260
Ì	1	3	312	Sundance	1,074	0.02647	\$13	\$159	\$6.84	\$82	\$20	\$241
ľ												
Ī	1	4	402	Tribeca	1,159	0.02857	\$14	\$171	\$7.38	\$89	\$22	\$260
Ī	1	4	404	Tribeca	1,161	0.02862	\$14	\$172	\$7.39	\$89	\$22	\$260
	1	4	406	Tribeca	1,159	0.02857	\$14	\$171	\$7.38	\$89	\$22	\$260
[1	4	408	Tribeca	1,161	0.02862	\$14	\$172	\$7.39	\$89	\$22	\$260
[1	4	410	Tribeca	1,159	0.02857	\$14	\$171	\$7.38	\$89	\$22	\$260
[1	4	412	Sundance	1,063	0.02620	\$13	\$157	\$6.77	\$81	\$20	\$238
Ĺ	1		502	Tribeca	1,059	0.02610	\$13	\$157	\$6.74	\$81	\$20	\$238
į.	1		504	Tribeca	1,161	0.02862	\$14	\$172	\$7.39	\$89	\$22	\$260
	1		506	Tribeca	1,059	0.02610	\$13	\$157	\$6.74	\$81	\$20	\$238
4	1		508	Tribeca	1,161	0.02862	\$14	\$172	\$7.39	\$89	\$22	\$260
1	1		510	Tribeca	1,059	0.02610	\$13	\$157	\$6.74	\$81	\$20	\$238
L	1	5	512	Sundance	1,074	0.02647	\$13	\$159	\$6.84	\$82	\$20	\$241
FACING ALLEY						2 20 2 4 5	4.0	***	45.55	4==	4.5	
-	1		303	Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76	\$19	\$223
].	1		305	Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12 \$12	\$147 \$147	\$6.32	\$76	\$19	\$223
	1		307 309	Cannes	992 992	0.02445 0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76	\$19	\$223
ļ.	1		311	Cannes	1,053	0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32 \$6.71	\$76 \$80	\$19 \$20	\$223 \$236
ŀ			217	Toronto	1,033	0.02396	\$13	\$730	₹0./1	380	\$20	\$23b
}	1		403	Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76	\$19	\$223
-	1		405	Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76	\$19	\$223
 -	1		407	Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76	\$19	\$223
Į-	1		409	Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76	\$19	\$223
F	1		411	Toronto	1.053	0.02596	\$13	\$156	\$6.71	\$80	\$20	\$236
<u> </u>					2,033	5.52550	7.5	7,250	73.7	700	720	7250
ŀ	1	5	503	Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76	\$19	\$223
f	1		505	Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76	\$19	\$223
ľ	1		507	Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76	\$19	\$223
t	1		509	Cannes	992	0.02445	\$12	\$147	\$6.32	\$76	\$19	\$223
1	1		511	Toronto	1,053	0.02596	\$13	\$156	\$6.71	\$80	\$20	\$236
-	36			707	40,569	1.00000	\$500	\$6,000		\$3,100	\$758	\$9,100